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StudentS

reSeArch funding – All SourceS
(in thousands of dollars)

Autumn enrollment
Undergraduate

32,263

31,474

27,780

Graduate

10,573

9,768

8,145

1,803

1,721

1,662

totAl

44,639

42,963

37,587

Extension1

56,097

36,203

28,643

Bachelor’s

8,306

8,053

7,065

Master’s

2,877

2,735

2,092

Doctoral

631

495

478

Research and Public Service

Professional

500

469

389

Auxiliary Enterprises

12,314

11,752

10,024

3,820

3,490

3,198

28,776

25,587

21,117

Professional

number of degrees Awarded

totAl
inStructionAl fAculty
fAculty And StAff 2

Course registrations

2

Full-time equivalents

3

Includes UW Medical Center

4

Net of scholarship allowances of $72,031,000 in 2007-2008 and $40,481,000 in 2002-2003

5

Stated at fair value

6

Gross square footage, all campuses
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2002–2003

1997–1998

$ 1,040,000

$ 933,000

$ 557,000

$ 1,115,974

$ 975,915

$ 549,756

Selected revenueS (in thousands of dollars)
Gifts, Grants, and Contracts
Auxiliary Enterprises and Other Revenues

1,358,109

1,013,253

690,167

State Appropriations (Operating)

388,485

332,518

290,466

Tuition and Fees 4

419,690

282,132

217,551

$ 1,122,688

$ 790,088

$ 498,272

654,468

526,193

368,399

910,639

686,780

521,032

324,613

254,890

161,715

$ 2,161,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 582,000

19,191

17,100

15,300

3

Selected expenSeS (in thousands of dollars)
Instruction, Academic Support,
and Student Services
3

Institutional Support and Physical Plant
conSolidAted endowment fundS 5
(in thousands of dollars)
SquAre footAge 6 (in thousands of square feet)
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2007–2008

President’s Message

B

y any measure, this was another
successful year for the University of
Washington. When I reflect on the
academic accomplishments and breakthrough
discoveries, I am acutely aware that they would
not be possible without the talented people at
the University and our dedicated partners in the
community. Our students, faculty, researchers
and staff achieve at such high levels year after
year because, like you and the people in this
region, they care deeply about our world and
are committed to solving the most pressing challenges of not only today, but also tomorrow.

Today’s problems are not easy to fix, the current
economic crisis being a prime example. like
other institutions across the country, the UW
is feeling the impact of a bad economy. Yet
while we face significant economic challenges,
we are also focused on the essential role the
University plays in solving them. Education
and innovation are the key drivers of economic
growth. That’s what we do. Our state and
our region rely on us to provide an educated
workforce that can produce new ideas and
services that will fuel the economy. Moreover,
the problems facing our world — such as crises
in the environment, health care, and energy, to
name only a few — are not going to wait for
the economy to improve. We cannot afford to
ignore them. And at the UW, we’re not.

With the establishment of the new College
of the Environment, our faculty and students
will play a growing role in finding solutions to
the problems threatening the sustainability of
our natural world. likewise, improving human
health continues to be a top priority. As a public
research university, we have the responsibility
and the capacity to make advancements that
help people everywhere lead healthier lives.

»now is the time to continue investing
in the future and doing what we
do best — making discoveries that
improve and shape our world.
MARk A. EMMERT

The UW also remains fully committed to
providing global learning and service opportunities for our students. Students benefit
from engaging with the world beyond our
campuses, as do those communities where
they study and work. Within these pages, you
will meet two UW seniors who were studying
in central China last year when a magnitude
7.9 earthquake struck. They had the option of
evacuating, but they stayed and made a difference through their compassion and dedication.
These achievements can only happen
with extraordinary support. The success of

Campaign UW: Creating Futures is boosting
the University’s ability to make a difference
today and tomorrow. nearly 300,000 generous
donors made gifts and pledges of $2.68 billion
to support and partner with the UW’s people
and programs. I am profoundly grateful to these
Campaign donors, whose generosity is strengthening every corner of our three campuses.
Public funding for the University is also an essential resource. While our past two biennial budgets
were excellent, the widespread economic
downturn means we now face serious challenges
to state funding. We must work together to use
resources effectively and ensure that educating
our state’s citizens remains a priority.
The UW has made great strides this past year,
and it’s important that we stay the course.
now is the time to continue investing in the
future and doing what we do best — making
discoveries that improve and shape our world.
Thanks to the foresight and commitment of
UW students, faculty, researchers and staff and
our business and community partners, this is a
promise we will continue to fulfill.

MARk A. EMMERT (’75)
PRESIDEnT
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5 UNLoCKING tHe PRoMISe oF teCHNoLoGY

IMPROVING
HEALTH HERE
AND AROUND
THE GLOBE

W

hether analyzing Puget Sound
health trends or providing medical
services to people in rural Africa,
University of Washington researchers, educators, students and practitioners are advancing
understanding of human health and improving
the well-being of people everywhere.
Adam Drewnowski grabbed headlines
nationwide with his research that found the
best predictor of obesity is your ZIP code.
Drewnowski, director of the UW Center for
Obesity Research, found that in Seattle, obesity
rates reached 30 percent in ZIP codes with the
lowest property values, but were only around
five percent in ZIP codes with the highest
property values. “Obesity is an economic
issue,” Drewnowski says. “Some of the most
disadvantaged areas — those hardest hit by
low income, low education and low property
values — are also the ones most affected by the
obesity epidemic.” Being able to predict vulnerable neighborhoods can help policymakers use
nutrition education and other programs where
they are needed most, he says.
half a world away in Gabon, Africa, lillian
Benjamin (’08), also sees the same undeniable link between economic status and
health as she provides nutritional counseling,
immunizations, and other health services to

children and pregnant women as part of her
Albert Schweitzer Fellowship and UW-based
Thomas Francis Jr. Global health Fellowship.
“Two days a week, we visit villages up to 100
kilometers away from the hospital, as well
as provide the same services at the hospital.
One thing that has drawn me to global
health is how small changes such as immunizations, prenatal care, family planning and
health education can have a big impact,” she
says. Benjamin was part of the first class to
graduate from the UW’s Department of Global
health, earning a master’s of Public health in
Global health concurrently with a master’s in
International Studies from the Jackson School
of International Studies.

»one thing that has drawn me to

global health is how small changes
such as immunizations, prenatal
care, family planning and health
education can have a big impact.
lIllIAn BEnJAMIn (’08)

The UW is a leader in health care issues on
a global level. The creation in 2007 of the
interdisciplinary Department of Global health, a
joint endeavor of the UW’s School of Medicine
and School of Public health and Community

Medicine, further strengthened the UW’s position, as did the subsequent establishment of
the Institute for health Metrics and Evaluation,
a major independent source of global health
information in the world.
As its global health efforts expand, the UW
remains firmly committed to improving the
health of people in our community, with top
health education, services and research. Both
the School of Medicine’s primary care program
and the School of nursing have held no. 1 spots
in U.S. News & World Report’s annual rankings
the past 15 years. The UW Medical Center was
ranked tenth nationally in U.S. News & World
Report’s 2008 publication of America’s Best
Hospitals. last year, UW-managed harborview
Medical Center received the Foster G. McGaw
Prize, a national health-care award recognizing
excellence in community service. In 2007,
harborview provided nearly $124 million in
charity health care.

ABoVe: Lillian Benjamin

(’08), part of the first class
to graduate from the UW’s
Department of Global Health,
providing health care services in
Gabon, Africa
BeLoW toP: UW researcher
Adam Drewnowski explores
how economics relates
to obesity
BeLoW BottoM: From the cell
level up, UW researchers are
involved in every aspect of
understanding and improving
human health

leArn more on the weB
UW Center for obesity Research:
depts.washington.edu/uwecor
Department of Global Health:
depts.washington.edu/deptgh
Institute for Health Metrics and
evaluation: healthmetricsandevaluation.org
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UNDERSTANDING OUR
ENVIRONMENT

ABoVe: Jeff Bowman (’08)

and Victoria Campbell (’08)
prepare to return to the UW’s
research ship after collecting
ice samples near the Marjorie
Glacier as part of last spring’s
Senior Research Cruise
BeLoW toP: the UW is a leader
in the ocean observatories
Initiative, which will expand
knowledge about our oceans
BeLoW BottoM: Compostable
cups are one example of
the UW’s commitment to
sustainability on its campuses

L

ast spring, 21 University of Washington
seniors and their professors set sail on
the Thomas G. Thompson research vessel
to see for themselves the dynamic and fragile
environment of Alaska’s Glacier Bay national
Park and Preserve. Carmela llaneta (’08)
researched the effects of retreating glaciers
on sediment, one of nearly a dozen student
projects aimed at better understanding the
impact of global warming on this unique
environment. “In the classroom, you can learn
about sediment and what it’s supposed to look
like, but actually working in Glacier Bay gave
us a real feel for how oceanographers work,”
llaneta says.
The oceanography research cruise has been an
annual tradition for decades, but until recently,
the expeditions did not stray from Puget Sound.
“Currently we take students far afield, reflecting
the belief that global issues can be addressed
through student research, ”Oceanography
Associate Professor Rick keil says. “In a time
when federal funding for national parks is
meager, the oceanography students wished to
conduct their research in an environment where
their findings could have an immediate impact.”
This emphasis on understanding the environment beyond the Puget Sound is also reflected
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»the uw is uniquely positioned
to be the country’s leading
university for environmental
research and education.

PROvOST AnD EXECUTIvE vICE PRESIDEnT PhYllIS WISE

in a collaborative project aimed at unlocking a
wealth of information about global warming,
earthquakes, tsunamis and life in the ocean’s
depths. The UW’s Applied Physics laboratory
and the School of Oceanography are major
players in the national Science Foundation’s
(nSF) Ocean Observatories Initiative (OOI), and
are responsible for designing and constructing
a massive cabled system of networked sensors
associated with the Juan de Fuca tectonic plate
in the northeast Pacific Ocean.
The nSF approved OOI’s preliminary design
in December 2007. “Much of this year has
been spent gearing up to successfully pass
the final design review, a major step for this
program,” says UW Oceanography Professor
John Delaney, director of OOI’s cabled network
component. he served as the chief scientist of a 2008 summer research expedition
that deployed a robotic submarine to create
extremely detailed maps of parts of the ocean
floor in two key OOI study areas.

While the UW is a leader in ocean-based
ecology issues, it is also taking a leadership role on land issues, helping to develop
sustainable biofuels from forest byproducts in
a partnership launched in 2007 by the College
of Engineering, College of Forest Resources
and the American Indian Studies Program.
The research is made possible in part by a nSF
Integrative Graduate Education and Research
Training award.
With more than 400 faculty members engaged
in understanding the natural environment and
with the Board of Regents approving a new
College of the Environment in June, the UW is
ready to further advance environmental understanding. “The UW is uniquely positioned to
be the country’s leading university for environmental research and education,” UW Provost
and Executive vice President Phyllis Wise says.
leArn more on the weB
UW Senior Research Cruise 2008:
courses.washington.edu/ocean444/2008
ocean observatories Initiative:
ooi.washington.edu
College of the environment:
coenv.washington.edu

UNLOCKING THE
PROMISE OF
TECHNOLOGY

Y

oky Matsuoka’s neurobotics lab is scattered with a bewildering array of lifelike
mechanical hands, fingers and arms that
wiggle and move on the very edge of what is
currently possible and what might one day be.
Matsuoka, a UW Computer Science &
Engineering associate professor, is working
with students in mechanical and biological
engineering, robotics, neuroscience and art
to construct the most anatomically correct
prosthetic hand in the world — controlled by
thought, through direct connection to the
user’s brain.
“The only way to get the movement intention
and full dexterity is to utilize what already exists
in the brain,” says Matsuoka, who in 2007 won
a MacArthur Foundation “genius grant” and
was named one of Popular Science magazine’s
“Brilliant Ten.” her lab has taken the lead in
developing a functional, durable neurochip for
passing messages from mind to machine. The
technology holds incredible promise for stroke
victims, people with missing limbs and those
with severe spinal cord injuries.
While Matsuoka works to serve those with
limited movement, UW computer scientists
and electrical engineers are using technology to assist people with other disabilities.

MobileASl and WebAnywhere, separate projects involving Richard ladner, Boeing Professor
in Computer Science & Engineering, are
making cell phone communication for the deaf
and Internet usage for the blind a reality.

»webAnywhere is a way to give
blind computer-users the same
access other people enjoy.
UW DOCTORAl STUDEnT JEFFREY BIGhAM

ladner first saw the impact of service-oriented
technology when his parents, who are deaf,
got a surplus teletypewriter and acoustic
modem in the 1970s, finally enabling them
to use a telephone. This past spring, he
and a group of colleagues led by Electrical
Engineering Professor Eve Riskin, demonstrated
MobileASl, which enables deaf individuals to
effectively sign through video over cell phones.
WebAnywhere, a free Web-based service that
reads text aloud, was developed by doctoral
student Jeffrey Bigham under ladner’s supervision. “WebAnywhere is a way to give blind
computer-users the same access other people
enjoy,” Bigham says. WebAnywhere was
recently awarded the Microsoft Imagine Cup
Accessible Technology Award and the 2008
Mellon Award for Technology Collaboration.

Another group of UW researchers are
engaging technology — and the public — to
help unravel some long-standing scientific
challenges. Computer Science & Engineering
researchers, led by Associate Professor Zoran
Popovi ć, and a Biochemistry team led by
David Baker, developed a Web-based game
called “Foldit.” Foldit presents protein folding,
the process by which DnA proteins fold into
extremely complex three-dimensional patterns
to determine their function, as an online
puzzle that has attracted nearly 60,000 players
worldwide. Understanding these patterns may
hold keys to curing diseases such as AIDS and
Alzheimer’s. “long-term, I’m hoping that we
can get a significant fraction of the world’s
population engaged in solving critical problems
in world health,” says Baker, winner of the
2008 Raymond & Beverly Sackler International
Prize in Biophysics.

ABoVe: Yoky Matsuoka,

recipient of a 2007
MacArthur Foundation
“genius grant”
BeLoW toP: Foldit, a Webbased game developed at the
UW, enlists people worldwide
in solving a daunting
scientific challenge
BeLoW BottoM: Boeing
Professor in Computer
Science & engineering
Richard Ladner works on
technology that helps people
with disabilities

leArn more on the weB
Neurobotics Laboratory:
neurobotics.cs.washington.edu
Mobile ASL: mobileasl.cs.washington.edu
WebAnywhere:
webanywhere.cs.washington.edu
Foldit: http://fold.it
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LEADING THE
CHARGE FOR A
GENERATION OF
GLOBAL CITIZENS

ABoVe: UW senior Steven

Margitan stayed in China
after an earthquake struck
and helped raise money to
support children and other
quake victims
oPPoSIte PAGe, ABoVe: Last
summer’s earthquake in
China, with an epicenter
in Sichuan province, killed
nearly 70,000 people and left
millions homeless

e

ven before disaster struck, University of
Washington students Geoffrey Morgan
and Steven Margitan were engaged in
helping communities near Sichuan University
in Chengdu, China, where they were
exchange students with the UW Worldwide
program. Morgan, a senior honors student
majoring in International Studies and Civil
and Environmental Engineering, was helping
rebuild a faulty water project, bringing fresh
water to many homes for the first time.
Margitan, a senior honors student majoring
in International Studies, was helping Chinese
students with their English.
For Morgan and Margitan, deciding to
continue to help the community after a
devastating earthquake May 12 was a natural
choice. Within hours of the 7.9 magnitude
quake, which leveled entire cities and left
millions homeless, they were given the option
to suspend their studies and evacuate. Both
decided to stay and help. “It would have been
hard to go home, pack my things and tell my
host family ‘Thanks and good luck, but I am
jumping town,’” Margitan says.

6
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Within two days, as conditions in Chengdu
rapidly deteriorated, Morgan and Margitan,
along with other UW students and faculty,
helped local relief organizations ship three
busloads of water to the hardest hit areas.
Within one week, they had created an
organization, China Earthquake Aid (CEA),
to assist local Chinese organizations. CEA’s
volunteers include Stevan harrell, a UW anthropology professor who directs the University’s
Worldwide Sichuan University Exchange
Program, as well as students and business
people living in Chengdu. The group collected

»the uw gives students a lot

of opportunities to learn about
global issues.
UW SEnIOR GEOFFREY MORGAn

more than 5,000 cards and letters from
American and Chinese students for children in
the earthquake-affected areas. It also created a
Web site to collect donations and share progress, and it participated in an airlift of 100 tents
to some of the most devastated, remote areas.

As word of the magnitude of the destruction spread across the globe, nearly $65,000
in aid poured in from UW students, faculty
and staff. The Foundation for International
Understanding Through Students (FIUTS),
a nonprofit organization founded at the
University of Washington in 1948, created a
disaster relief fund to channel donations to the
project. The Chinese Students Association and
the Chinese Students and Scholars Association
at the UW held a donation drive and a
candlelight vigil in Red Square that raised
$5,000 for Morgan and Margitan’s group to
buy nearly 1,000 Chinese-English dictionaries
and hundreds of pounds of school supplies,
including crayons, colored pencils and more
than 2,000 pencils.
“The support of the University community was
incredible,” Margitan says. “My inbox was
flooded with email from professors and advisors inquiring about the situation and asking if
I was okay. So many people, even people I had
never met, were eager to help and support our
efforts. Seeing this kind of response from the
University community meant a lot to me.”

• Doujiangyan
• Chengdu
• Fulin

»much of the ownership, as it

should, comes down to the student,
but all the opportunities for
growth and development are here
on campus. the uw has pushed
me to expand boundaries, adopt
other points of view and grow as a
student and global citizen.
UW SEnIOR STEvEn MARGITAn

In September, CEA’s efforts were honored with
the FIUTS Shigemura Award for International
Understanding. For more than 50 years,
FIUTS has presented the Shigemura Award
annually to an outstanding student, community member or organization that has been
instrumental in promoting international understanding in the local community. Margitan
and Morgan are now back at the UW
completing their studies, but their work with
CEA continues, with a shift in focus reflecting
China’s current needs.
“The main relief effort was originally taking
care of physical trauma, but now we’re shifting
our focus to psychological trauma,” Morgan

says. Currently, CEA is focusing on services
for children, including collecting letters of
support from American children and providing
school supplies and books to refill libraries
in the disaster zone so children can continue
their education. Morgan says it has been his
goal to find ways to help people. “That’s
why I combined my two degrees, Civil and
Environmental Engineering and International
Studies, so I can work on development projects
that help people. The UW gives students a lot
of opportunities to learn about global issues,”
Morgan says.

LeFt: China earthquake Aid

raised money to help those
affected by the natural disaster
BeLoW LeFt: Senior Geoffrey
Morgan plans to work on
international development
projects after graduating
BeLoW RIGHt: Chinese
schoolchildren received letters
and school supplies

Margitan agrees: “Much of the ownership, as
it should, comes down to the student, but all
the opportunities for growth and development
are here on campus. The UW has pushed me to
expand boundaries, adopt other points of view
and grow as a student and global citizen.”
leArn more on the weB
China earthquake Aid:
www.chinaearthquakeaid.org
Foundation for International
Understanding through Students (FIUtS):
fiuts.washington.edu
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Capital Budget and Campus Construction

t

he University of Washington’s capital projects
continue to provide modern facilities for worldclass research and teaching. Major construction
projects in fiscal year 2008 include the following:

warren g. magnuson health Sciences center
h-wing renovation

programs for navy, Army and Air Force students
pursuing UW degrees.

floyd and delores Jones
playhouse renovation

Renovation of the 95,000-square-foot original wing
provides modern laboratory and office space for
School of Medicine departments of Physiology and
Biophysics and Biological Structures. This $40 million
renovation was funded from a combination of state,
federal facilities grants, and other University sources.

State funding of $7.6 million provided for the basic
renovation of the core facility. Private funding of
$2.3 million was contributed to enhance the project
and University funding was approved for the balance
of this $10.7 million project. The construction will
be completed for the School of Drama teaching
program, offering students an opportunity to stage
productions beginning in early 2009.

Savery hall renovation

uw tower capital projects

Renovation will preserve the core facility and improve
the academic space of this 102,100-square-foot
instructional building. Construction of a computer
resource center, classrooms and an auditorium
for the departments of Economics, Philosophy
and Sociology in the College of Arts & Sciences
is underway and will be completed by autumn
quarter 2009. State funding of $61.5 million was
appropriated for this renovation.

University programs have moved into most of the
22-story office building and connected low-rise
buildings, which combined have approximately
510,000 square feet of space. The project budget
for the interior capital improvements for these
offices is $13 million.

clark hall renovation
Constructed in 1896, Clark hall is one of the oldest
buildings on the Seattle campus. State funding
of $18 million was appropriated for this 30,500square-foot renovation, which will be completed in
March 2009. It will continue to house instructional

west campus parking garage expansion
This five-story addition will add parking to the
Seattle southwest campus to meet current and
future demand due to the construction of additional
buildings. The forecast cost of $17.9 million will
be funded from a combination of debt and local
sources. Construction is in progress and scheduled
for completion in May 2009.

LeFt: Renovation of Clark Hall

is scheduled for completion
this spring
BeLoW LeFt: Savery Hall houses
the economics, Philosophy and
Sociology departments
BeLoW RIGHt: the UW tower,
formerly owned by Safeco
Insurance, now houses many
UW programs

The Tower Data Center project is an interior
renovation and utility upgrade. The design phase
has been completed for this 30,000-square-foot
project in selected areas of the low-rise building C.
Construction is expected to be complete by
September 2009. State funding of $20 million was
appropriated for the Tower Data Center project and
additional funding of $12 million was provided
from debt to be repaid by research revenue.
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Funding and operations
Sources of funds
3% eAch: SAlES AnD SERvICES
OF EDUCATIOnAl DEPTS.; OThER

2% eAch: STATE FUnDInG FOR
CAPITAl EXPEnDITURES;
InvESTMEnT InCOME

4% AUXIlIARY
30% GRAnTS

5% GIFTS

AnD COnTRACTS

• The University of Washington has a diversified revenue base. No
single source generated more than 30 percent of the total fiscal
year 2008 revenues of $3.5 billion.
• State operating appropriations were $388 million, or 11 percent
of total revenues. The UW relies heavily on such funding for
instructional activities.

11% STATE FUnDInG
FOR OPERATIOnS

14% TUITIOn
26% PATIEnT REvEnUE

• Income from gifts totaled $177 million (five percent). This is an
increase of $3 million over the previous year.

uses of funds
4% eAch: SChOlARShIPS AnD
FEllOWShIPS; InSTITUTIOnAl SUPPORT
5% eAch: AUXIlIARY; OPERATIOn
AnD MAInTEnAnCE OF PlAnT

• Grants and contracts generated $1.1 billion of current-year
revenue (30 percent), a six percent increase over fiscal year
2007. These funds provided the opportunity for graduate and
undergraduate students to work with nationally recognized
faculty in research as part of their educational experience.

2% OThER
25% InSTRUCTIOn

• Two primary functions of the University, instruction and research,
accounted for 44 percent of total operating expenses. These
dollars provided instruction to more than 44,000 students and
funded 5,400 research awards.

6% DEPRECIATIOn
8% ACADEMIC SUPPORT
22% MEDICAl RElATED
19% RESEARCh
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• The UW provided students with scholarships and fellowships,
(including scholarship allowances of $72 million), totaling $143
million. This represented four percent of operating expenditures.

BuSineSS diverSity
progrAm mAkeS
uw purchASing
more AcceSSiBle
Lynn Beck, Business Diversity specialist, and Shaun Spearmon, Business Diversity manager, of the UW’s Business Diversity Program

A

revamped and reorganized University of
Washington Business Diversity Program
is working to make the University more
accessible to Washington state’s minority- and
women-owned businesses, and raise awareness
among units that purchase goods and services
for the UW.

The Business Diversity Program resides within
Strategy Management, a department of UW
Finance and Facilities, and is staffed by a manager
and business diversity specialist. This program
is advised by a board that includes members
from Purchasing Services, Capital Projects Office,
e-Commerce, housing and Food Services, Facilities
Services, UW Medical Center, harborview Medical
Center and others.

The Business Diversity Program was created to
support both the procurement and contracting
needs of the UW as well as promote the vital
role diversity plays in Washington. As the state
becomes more diverse, support for small, minorityand women-owned businesses is an increasingly
important component of the UW’s procurement
and contracting strategies. The Business Diversity
Program serves as a resource to the many schools,
colleges and departments on campus that are
responsible for making buying decisions.

given the decentralized procurement process for
small purchases. Workshops have been held for
businesses to help familiarize them with how the
UW purchases goods and services. The program
is also planning events to bring together potential
vendors with major campus units that buy goods
and services in significant quantity. Resources
such as the Diverse vendor Search Database have
been created to make the diverse and local small
business community more accessible to the
UW staff.

Through a campus-wide collaboration, the Business
Diversity Program has developed numerous
outreach opportunities for small businesses to
make critical connections with decision-makers
throughout the University, an important step

UW Business Diversity Program:
washington.edu/admin/bdp/index.html

leArn more on the weB
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Investments
growth of consolidated endowment fund: 1997-2008

• Investment returns provide an important source of revenue for
the University’s programs. Among the funds invested by the
University are endowments, life income trusts and annuities,
outright gifts, reserve balances and operating cash.

$482

1997

$582

1998

• Endowed gifts provide permanent capital and an ongoing stream
of current earnings to the University. Programs supported by
the endowment include undergraduate scholarships, graduate
fellowships, professorships, chairs and research activities.

$673

1999

$859

2000

• Most endowments are commingled in the Consolidated
Endowment Fund (CEF), a diversified investment fund. As in a
mutual fund, each individual endowment maintains a separate
identity and owns units in the fund. On June 30, 2008, the
fair market value of the CEF was $2.2 billion, representing the
investments of 2,825 individual endowments.

$839

2001

$998

2002

$1,000

2003

$1,208

2004

$1,366

2005

$1,700

2006

$2,098

2007

2008

$2,161

i n mi lli on S

$0

$400

$800

$1,200
in millionS
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• During fiscal year 2002, the Board of Regents approved the
investment of a portion of the University’s operating funds to
establish an endowment. These funds currently comprise
$446 million of the CEF market value.

u n i v e r s i t y o f W a s h i n g to n

$1,600

$2,000

• Endowed program support over the last 10 years totaled
$562 million. During that period, the average annual total
return on the CEF was 9.7 percent.

A cAmpAign
thAt iS
chAnging liveS

UW sophomore Nia Nguyen is able to attend the UW because of a scholarship established during Campaign UW

A

n unprecedented show of support from
nearly 300,000 donors and close to
4,000 volunteers has resulted in the most
successful fundraising campaign in the University of
Washington’s history. Supporters of Campaign UW:
Creating Futures, which ended June 30, 2008, are
transforming countless lives with their investment
of more than $2.68 billion in the UW.

Students like sophomore nia nguyen are able
to reach their academic goals thanks to new
scholarships. “honestly, I wouldn’t be able to
attend college without such generous support
from the UW,” says nguyen, recipient of a Students
First Matching Challenge Endowed Scholarship,
created through a Campaign initiative to
increase scholarships.

The eight-year campaign started with an ambitious
goal of $2 billion, the largest Campaign goal
for a public institution at the time. Dedicated
supporters helped the UW surpass that initial goal
in January 2007 and the revised $2.5 billion target.
The result is 179 new endowments for chairs and
professorships, 684 new student scholarship and
fellowship endowments, nearly $1.5 billion in
program support and more than $314 million in
capital support.

Philanthropic support of Campaign UW is also
strengthening the University’s faculty. “I can’t tell
you the number of times that we’ve been able
to recruit, retain, advance, promote and reward
faculty because we’ve been able to obtain a gift
that allows us to endow a chair or professorship,”
UW Provost and Executive vice President Phyllis
Wise says.

Connie kravas, vice president of University
Advancement, knows that Campaign UW will have
a lasting impact. “The University of Washington
will be renowned throughout the world as one of
the preeminent universities, making a difference
not only for the great students who are able to
come to the institution, and for what our alumni
do with that great education, but for the research
and service we provide right here at home and
throughout the globe,” she says.
leArn more on the weB

Campaign UW: uwfoundation.org
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Debt Financing

70

moody’s 2008 public college and university ratings
65

60

numBer of inStitutionS

50

• Strong ratings carry substantial advantages for the UW:
continued and wider access to capital markets when the
University issues debt; lower interest rates on bonds; and the
ability to negotiate favorable bond terms.

40

40

38

• The University takes seriously its role of financial stewardship
and works hard to manage its financial resources effectively.
Continued high debt ratings are important indicators of the
University’s success in this area.

30

24

20

18

11
10

6
3
0
Aaa

Aa1

Aa2

Aa3

A1

A2

A3

Bond rAting

the UW had a bond rating of Aa1 in 2008.
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• The University’s general revenue borrowing platform, established
in 2003, has been used to fund research buildings on the Seattle
campus and at South lake Union. Both Moody’s and Standard
& Poor’s have recognized the financial strength of the general
revenue platform with their second-highest bond rating, Aa1
from Moody’s and AA+ from Standard & Poor’s. These ratings
put the UW in elite company; only three other public universities
have a higher rating and just five others have the same rating.

Baa1

internAl lending
progrAm provideS
greAter coSt StABility

Suzzallo Library and the Broken obelisk are landmarks on Red Square at the UW’s Seattle campus

t

he UW’s Internal lending Program (IlP) was
created in 2008 to provide low-cost capital
funding for internal borrowing units at stable
and predictable interest rates.

The IlP is an integral part of the Strategic Treasury
Management Initiative. Other components of this
initiative include managing the University’s cash
flows and operating balances.

Under the IlP, University borrowers will be able
to secure loans for capital projects at a uniform
interest rate. This internal rate will be buffered
against rate volatility through the use of a ratestabilization fund.

through the use of the University’s commercial
paper program, which was implemented in 2006.
Outstanding commercial paper will be periodically
redeemed with the proceeds from the issuance of
long-term General Revenue Bonds.

The IlP separates the issuance of external debt
from specific capital projects by providing just-intime short-term funding for individual projects.
The main vehicle for short-term funding will be

By pooling University revenues, only issuing debt
when needed, and creating a fund to maintain
rate stability, the University is able to provide more
stability and lower costs of capital.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The following discussion and analysis provides an
overview of the financial position and activities of the
University of Washington (“University”) for the years
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. This discussion has been
prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying
notes, which follow this section.

Using the Financial Statements
The University’s financial statements include the
Balance Sheets, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets, the Statements of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Financial Statements. These
financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
principles, which establish standards for external
financial reporting for public colleges and universities.
GASB standards require that financial statements be
presented on a consolidated basis in order to focus on
the University as a whole.

Financial Health
BAlAnce SheetS

The Balance Sheets present the financial condition of
the University at the end of the last two fiscal years and
report all assets and liabilities of the University. A
summarized comparison of the University’s assets,
liabilities and net assets as of June 30, 2008, 2007,
and 2006, follows:

(in millions)

Current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
other
total assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
total liabilities
net assets

2008

2007

$ 1,404

$ 1,188

2006

2,714
3,309
7,427

2,609
3,303
7,100

2,374
2,886
6,197

1,189
1,101
2,290

994
1,132
2,126

859
960
1,819

$ 5,137

$ 4,974

$ 4,378

$

937

The excess of current assets over current liabilities of
$215 million in 2008 reflects the continuing ability of
the University to meet its short-term obligations. Current
assets consist primarily of cash, short-term investments,
collateral from securities lending and accounts receivable.
Total current assets increased by $216 million, to
$1.4 billion at June 30, 2008. The June 30, 2007
balance of $1.2 billion was an increase of $251 million
from 2006. The current asset balance fluctuates primarily due to changes in the securities lending collateral and
short-term investments. The short-term portion of the
University’s investment portfolio can fluctuate based
upon changes in investment mix and the expected shortterm needs for University funds.
The difference between total assets and total liabilities
— net assets, or “equity” — is one indicator of the current financial condition of the University. The change in
net assets measures whether the overall financial condition has improved or deteriorated during the year.

• Restricted Net Assets:
– Nonexpendable net assets consist of funds on which
the donor or external party has imposed the restriction that the corpus is not available for expenditures
but rather for investment purposes only;
– Expendable net assets are resources which the
University is legally or contractually obligated to
spend in accordance with time or purpose restrictions placed by donors and/or other external parties;
• Unrestricted Net Assets are all other funds available
to the institution for any purpose associated with
its mission. Unrestricted assets are often internally
designated for specific purposes.
The University’s net assets at June 30, 2008, 2007, and
2006 are summarized as follows:
(in millions)

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted:
Nonexpendable
expendable
Unrestricted
total net assets

2008

2007

2006

$ 1,831

$ 1,745

$ 1,658

903
1,396
1,007
$ 5,137

812
1,465
952
$ 4,974

723
1,142
855
$ 4,378

Net investment in capital assets increased $86 million,
or 5% in 2008 and $87 million, or 5% in 2007.
This balance increases as debt is paid off or when the
University purchases fixed assets without financing.
This balance decreases as assets are depreciated.

The University reports its “equity” in four categories:

Restricted nonexpendable net assets grew $91 million,
or 11% in 2008, and $89 million, or 12%, in 2007 as
a result of new endowment gifts.

• Invested in Capital Assets (net of related debt) – This
is the University’s total investment in property, plant,
equipment and infrastructure, net of accumulated
depreciation and outstanding debt obligations related
to those capital assets;

Restricted expendable net assets decreased $69 million,
or 5%, in 2008, and grew $323 million, or 28%,
in 2007. This category is affected primarily by new
operating and capital gifts, and earnings on restricted
investments, including endowments.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Unrestricted Net Assets in 2008 increased by $55
million, or 6% over 2007. The Unrestricted Net Asset
growth in 2007 was $97 million, or 11%. The increase
in both years was driven by increases in tuition revenues
and patient service margins, offset by capital expenditures. The 2007 increase also benefited from a strong
investment return.
The ratio of expendable financial resources to operations (as defined by Moody’s) measures the strength of
Net Assets. This ratio, illustrated in the chart below,
shows that the University had enough expendable
resources from various sources to fund operations for
a period that exceeded eight months in each of the last
three years.

2.5
2.4

2007

2.4

2006

9.5

8.3

Moody’s Public
Universities

1.8

2.0

8.9

2008

7.6

(Aa median, 2007)

0

2.5

2.0

4.0

6.0

monthS of coverAge

8.0

10.0

The Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF) returned
1.9%, ending the year at $2.2 billion, compared to a
return of 23.3% in the prior year.
Over the past 10 years, the CEF averaged a 9.7% annual
return, a performance that ranks in the top half of
the 50 largest college and university endowments as
measured by Cambridge Associates.
The Invested Funds (IF), or operating monies of the
University, returned 7.0% for fiscal year 2008 and 5.4%
in 2007, ending the 2008 fiscal year with a market value
of $869 million.
capital improvements and related debt

In 2008, capital expenditures included $65 million to
complete the construction of a medical research facility
3 seismic
started in 2006,
and $24
million
to finish the
operating
margin
percentage
bracing, infrastructure upgrades and renovation at the
Health Science Center. Additional expenditures in 2008
included $20 million
1.11% of Clark Hall,
2008 for renovation
Savery Hall, and the Floyd and Delores Jones Playhouse,
as part of the Restore
1.69%
2007 the Core plan.

expendable financial resources
to operations1

cial
debt2

endowment and other investments

12.0

The medical research facility was funded by proceeds
0.76%State funding and
from debt issued 2006
in a prior year.
UniversityMoody’s
sources
funded the Health Science Center
Public
2.80%was supUniversities
improvements,
and the Restore the Core plan
(Aa median, 2007)
ported by state appropriations.
0
1

2

3

In 2007, capital expenditures
included $130 million for
percentAge
the purchase of an administrative building (the UW
Tower), which will centralize related offices and reduce
the use of rented facilities, and $61 million to continue
the construction by a component unit of a medical
research facility started in 2006. Additional expenditures in 2007 were $19 million for renovation of the
Architecture Hall and $19 million for the renovation of
Guggenheim Hall.

In 2007, total long-term debt for financing capital
assets increased by $176 million to $1 billion. The
largest debt issuance was $130 million for the purchase
of the administrative building (the UW Tower) noted
previously. Bonds with a par value of $59.9 million were
issued in 2007 by Washington Biomedical Research
Properties II, a component unit, to complete the
financing for the construction of the medical research
facility previously mentioned. The $88 million increase
in capital asset-related long-term debt in 2006 was
primarily due to the initial financing for the medical
research building.
The constant trend in the expendable financial resources
to debt ratio (as defined by Moody’s) shows that the
University has sufficient expendable resources to pay its
long-term debt obligations 2½ times over.
expendable financial
resources to direct debt2
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StAtementS of revenueS, expenSeS, And
chAngeS in net ASSetS

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets present the University’s results of operations
and nonoperating items that result in the changes in Net

1
The sum of Unrestricted Net Assets and Restricted Expendable Net Assets, divided by Total Operating Expenses (Operating Expenses plus interest expense). The result is multiplied by 12 to arrive at months of coverage.
2
The sum of Unrestricted Net Assets and Restricted Expendable Net Assets, divided by total capital leases, bonds and notes payable outstanding.
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2.5

2008

ex

Assets for the year. In accordance with GASB reporting
principles, revenues and expenses are classified as either
operating or nonoperating. A condensed comparison of
the University’s revenues, expenses and changes in net
assets for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and
2006 follows:
2008

2007

2006

$ 2,750
3,284
(534)

$ 2,590
3,071
(481)

$ 2,420
2,895
(475)

(in millions)

total operating revenues
operating expenses
operating loss
Nonoperating revenues,
net of expenses
other revenue
Increase in net assets
net assets, beginning of year
net assets, end of year

503
194
163

907
170
596

679
151
355

4,974
$ 5,137

4,378
$ 4,974

4,023
$ 4,378

grant revenue

The largest source of revenues continues to be from
grants and contracts. This revenue increased $62 million,
or 6%, in 2008, compared to an essentially flat trend in
2007 from 2006. The University had a 2% increase in
the dollar amount of research awards in the year ended
June 30, 2008.
Grant and contract revenue is earned when direct
expenditures (such as researchers’ compensation or
purchases of goods and services) are made; therefore,
there is little effect to the University’s operating margin
as a result of this direct expense reimbursement process.
Facility and administrative expenses necessary to support grants and contracts are reimbursed by an indirect
cost recovery. The current federal indirect cost recovery
is approximately 30 cents for every direct expenditure
dollar on these grants and contracts.

The University has a diversified revenue base. The following table summarizes revenues from all sources for
the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Obtaining federal funding for research has become
much more competitive; however, the University’s
global initiative, particularly international health-related
grants, continues to grow.

(in millions)

primary non-grant funding Sources

tuition and fees
Patient services

2008

$

420

2007

$

397

2006

$

358

924

857

797

1,063

1,001

998

Sales and services of
educational departments

111

119

96

Auxiliary enterprises

146

137

123

State funding for operations

388

366

339

Gifts

177

174

210

77

503

294

Grants and contracts

Investment income
State funding for capital projects
other
total revenue – all sources

71

74

37

112

86

56

$ 3,489

$ 3,714

$ 3,308

The University relies primarily on student tuition
and fees and state appropriations as revenue sources
to support its non-grant funded educational operating expenses. Tuition and fees, net of scholarship
allowances, has continued to grow, increasing 11%
from $358 million in 2006 to $397 million in 2007,
and 6% to $420 million in 2008. The increases were
primarily due to 7% increases in average tuition rates
in both years.
The impact of the tuition increase was partially offset
by the increase in scholarships (including scholarship
allowances) of $16 million in 2008. The University has
flexibility in its ability to set non-undergraduate resident

tuition rates, which helps to compensate for shortfalls in
state funding. Course fees related to UW Educational
Outreach, the continuing education branch of the
University, amounted to $47 million in 2008, $43 million in 2007, and $33 million in 2006.
State appropriations are considered nonoperating
revenue under GASB Statement No. 35 standards and
are reflected in the nonoperating section of the income
statement; however, they are used solely for operating
purposes. Included in the 2007 state appropriations
amount is a one-time, $9.5 million appropriation
related to a health insurance premium rebate for
union employees.
patient Services

Revenues from patient services increased $67 million,
or 8%, from $857 million in 2007 to $924 million in
2008. In 2007, patient revenues increased $60 million,
which was an increase of 8% over the previous year. The
increase is due to both volume and price increases.
gifts, endowments and investment income

Investment income and gifts continue to provide the
University with an added margin of excellence and the
flexibility to respond to special opportunities.
Net investment returns for the years ended June 30, 2008,
2007, and 2006 consisted of the following components:
(in millions)

Interest and dividends
Metropolitan tract
operating income
Net appreciation
of fair value of investments
Investment expenses
net investment income

2008

2007

2006

$ 77

$ 100

$ 68

6

12

6

3

399

228

(9)
$ 77

(8)
$ 503

(8)
$ 294
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Net appreciation includes both realized and unrealized
gains and losses; however, the unrealized gains are not
expendable until the underlying securities have been
sold. Net investment income decreased by $426 million,
or 85%, in 2008, and increased $209 million, or 71%
in 2007. The change in unrealized gains was the major
factor in the change in Net Assets for both 2008 and
2007. The sharp decline in University investment performance in 2008 was related to market declines through
the end of the fiscal year.
The University continues to receive strong support
from its donors with total revenue of $177 million from
donors in fiscal year 2008. Gifts are used to support a
variety of purposes, including capital improvements,
scholarships, research, and endowments for various
academic and research chairs.
expenses

A comparative summary of the University’s expenses
by functional classification for the years ended June 30,
2008, 2007, and 2006 is as follows:
(in millions)

operating expenses:
Instruction
Research
Public Service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
operation and maintenance
of plant
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Medical related
Depreciation
total operating expenses

20
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2008

$

824
623
31
265
34
156

169
71
162
749
200
$ 3,284

2007

$

783
596
35
220
31
140

175
69
143
689
190
$ 3,071

2006

$

717
599
33
211
28
109

152
60
126
655
205
$ 2,895

In 2008, the University’s operating expenses increased
$213 million or 7%, over 2006. Instruction costs grew
$41 million, or 5%, reflecting salary and other cost
increases as well as a 3% increase in regular student
enrollments and a 15% increase in extension enrollments. Research expenditures, representing sponsored
research, increased $27 million, or 5%, from the prior
year, consistent with the 6% increase in grant and
contract revenue.
Academic Support grew $45 million, or 20%, in such
areas as the School of Medicine, and the School of
Public Health. Institutional Support expenditures
increased $16 million in 2008 from 2007, an increase of
11%. This included an increase in information management technology. The Auxiliary Enterprise growth in
expenses of $19 million, or 13%, was due in part to
Intercollegiate Athletics, reflecting a revenue increase,
and other enterprise accounts across the University.
Medical related expenses grew $60 million, or 9%, mirroring the 8% increase in patient service revenue.
Of the $213 million increase in operating expenses in
2008, $112 million, or 53% of the increase, was due to
increases in salaries and benefits, compared to a $101
million increase in salaries and benefits in the prior year.
Salary rate increases ranging from 2% to 4.5% increased
salary costs, and increased premiums for health care and
retirement resulted in higher benefit expense.
In 2007, the University’s operating expenses increased
$176 million, or 6%, over 2006. Instruction increased
$66 million, or 9%, reflecting salary rate increases of
1.6% to 3% as well as other instructional cost increases.

Institutional Support expenses in 2007 increased $31
million over the prior year. The growth resulted from
an increase in purchased services and a general increase
in salaries, benefits, supplies, and other expenses.
Operation and Maintenance of Plant expenses rose
$23 million in 2007. The primary causes for the
increase were higher electricity, fuel costs and rental
expenses. Operating expenses of the newly acquired
UW Tower and increased purchases of non-capital
equipment also contributed to the change.
operating loss

The University’s operating loss increased to $534
million in 2008 from $481 million in 2007 and $475
million in 2006. GASB standards require that state
appropriations, which are used solely for operations, be
classified as nonoperating, thus creating the significant
loss. If state appropriations were classified as operating,
the operating loss would be as follows for 2008, 2007,
and 2006, respectively: $146 million, $115 million, and
$136 million. The University continues to rely upon
nonoperating revenues in addition to state appropriations to fund its operations, including non-capital gift
revenues and investment income distributions.
Moody’s measures the net result of revenue and expense
activity by considering several nonoperating revenues in
determining the margin.
The 2008 operating margin declined to 1.09% from
1.69% in 2007. The 2007 margin was a significant
increase over 2006.
Operating margin calculations include an estimated
return on the University’s investments rather than actual
investment income. Therefore, increases or decreases in
investment performance in a given year will not necessarily increase or decrease the operating margin.

operating margin percentage3

1.11%

2008

Recent changes in domestic and foreign economies may
adversely affect the University’s donor support.

1.69%

2007

0.76%

2006
Moody’s Public
Universities

2.80%

(Aa median, 2007)

2.0

0

1

2

purposes. However, the ability to increase tuition rates,
along with continued strong demand for services, offsets
some of that pressure.

3

percentAge

Economic Factors Expected to Affect
the Future

Since June 30, 2008, major U.S. and foreign stock
indices have declined significantly. The University
is monitoring investment market conditions and the
impact such declines are having on its investment
portfolios. As of the date of this report, the extreme
volatility in the global capital markets continues. The
Consolidated Endowment Fund and Invested Funds
were down through the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2009
and further declines are expected in the second quarter.

Funding for the University’s operations comes primarily
from the following general sources: grants and contracts,
patient services, state appropriations, tuition and fees,
gifts, and investment income.
Federal support for research may be negatively
impacted by economic circumstances; however, the
University is attempting to maintain its current share of
the research budget.
While net income from patient services increased
this year, costs for hospitals continue to increase, and
pressure from insurers on revenue increases is expected
to continue.
The state of Washington is experiencing an extremely
challenging financial situation. The biennial budget
deficit for the two-year period beginning July 1, 2009, is
estimated at over $5 billion. This will undoubtedly put
pressure on the University’s allocation of state dollars,
which is used for instruction and academic support

3

Operating loss, (including interest expense, operating appropriations, an assumed 5% spending rate on investments, and non-permanent endowment gifts), divided by operating revenues (less scholarship expenses, and including operating appropriations, an assumed 5% return on
investments, and non-permanent endowment gifts).
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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Regents
University of Washington:
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the University of Washington (“University”), an agency of the state of
Washington, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, as listed in the table of contents on page 16. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the University’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
As discussed in note 1, the financial statements of the University of Washington, an agency of the state of Washington, are intended to
present the financial position, and the changes in financial position and cash flows of only that portion of the activities of the state of
Washington that is attributable to the transactions of the University of Washington. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the
financial position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, the changes in its financial position or its cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the University
of Washington as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 17 through 21 is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is
supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplemental
information. however, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Seattle, Washington
December 16, 2008
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Balance Sheets
June 30,
ASSetS

2008

2007

June 30,

liABilitieS

2008

34,458

ACCOUnTS PAYABlE

COllATERAl FROM SECURITIES lEnDInG (nOTE 6)

628,279

396,657

ACCRUED lIABIlITIES

203,401

262,023

ShORT-TERM InvESTMEnTS (nOTE 6)

302,692

291,631

PAYABlES: SECURITIES lEnDInG TRAnSACTIOnS

628,279

396,657

DEFERRED REvEnUE

160,635

113,728

CASh AnD CASh EqUIvAlEnTS (nOTE 2)

$

16,707

$

ACCOUnTS RECEIvABlE (nET OF $88,120 AnD $80,471 AllOWAnCE)
(nOTE 5)

InvEnTORIES
OThER ASSETS

422,364

429,193

29,205

26,860

37,302
68,053

1,189,016

993,634

66,146

55,616

2,999,205

3,007,948

119,640

120,990

(nOTE 4)

66,526

64,400

OThER ASSETS

57,087

53,807

ACCUMUlATED DEPRECIATIOn) (nOTE 8)

2,714,429

2,609,095

InvESTED In CAPITAl ASSETS, nET OF RElATED DEBT

TOTAl nOnCURREnT ASSETS

6,023,033

5,911,856

RESTRICTED:

$ 7,427,510

$ 7,099,789

METROPOlITAn TRACT (nOTE 7)

U.S. GOvERnMEnT GRAnTS REFUnDABlE
lOnG-TERM lIABIlITIES, nET OF CURREnT PORTIOn (nOTES 9-12)
TOTAl nOnCURREnT lIABIlITIES
TOTAl lIABIlITIES

nOnEXPEnDABlE
EXPEnDABlE
UnRESTRICTED
TOTAl nET ASSETS
totAl liABilitieS And net ASSetS

Dollars in thousands
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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3,888

4,078

51,252

49,831

1,046,044

1,078,281

1,101,184

1,132,190

2,290,200

2,125,824

1,831,290

1,745,223

net ASSetS

CAPITAl ASSETS (nET OF $2,207,659 AnD $2,051,038

totAl ASSetS

TOTAl CURREnT lIABIlITIES
noncurrent liABilitieS

DEFERRED REvEnUE

STUDEnT lOAnS RECEIvABlE (nET OF $8,861 AnD $8,402 AllOWAnCE)

115,871

64,713

9,134

lOnG-TERM InvESTMEnTS (nOTE 6)

$

lOnG-TERM lIABIlITIES, CURREnT PORTIOn (nOTES 9-12)

1,187,933

DEPOSIT WITh STATE OF WAShInGTOn (nOTE 3)

115,652

16,336

5,230

noncurrent ASSetS

$

FUnDS hElD FOR OThERS

1,404,477

TOTAl CURREnT ASSETS
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2007

current liABilitieS

current ASSetS

902,635

811,856

1,395,775

1,465,035

1,007,610

951,851

5,137,310

4,973,965

$ 7,427,510

$ 7,099,789
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Statements of Revenues, expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
June 30,
revenueS

2008

June 30,
2007

operAting revenueS

STATE APPROPRIATIOnS
GIFTS

STUDEnT TUITIOn AnD FEES
(nET OF SChOlARShIP AllOWAnCES OF $69,027 AnD $55,394)

nonoperAting revenueS (expenSeS)

$

419,690

$

396,895

2008

2007

388,485

365,782

66,381

85,885

PATIEnT SERvICES (nET OF ChARITY CARE OF $30,582 AnD $27,451)

923,869

857,101

InvESTMEnT InCOME (nET OF InvESTMEnT EXPEnSE OF
$8,888 AnD $8,412)

77,379

503,300

FEDERAl GRAnTS AnD COnTRACTS

852,562

829,405

InTEREST On CAPITAl ASSET-RElATED DEBT

(41,653)

(40,005)

56,045

46,548

OThER nOnOPERATInG REvEnUES (EXPEnSES)

12,233

(8,039)

nOnGOvERnMEnTAl GRAnTS AnD COnTRACTS

140,986

118,088

502,825

906,923

SAlES AnD SERvICES OF EDUCATIOnAl DEPARTMEnTS

110,873

119,006

STATE AnD lOCAl GRAnTS AnD COnTRACTS

AUXIlIARY EnTERPRISES:
hOUSInG AnD FOOD SERvICES
PARkInG SERvICES

51,556

50,021

8,397

9,976

(30,944)

426,352

CAPITAl APPROPRIATIOnS

income (loSS) Before other revenueS

71,218

74,000

CAPITAl GRAnTS AnD GIFTS

18,880

25,933

GIFTS TO PERMAnEnT EnDOWMEnTS
totAl other revenueS

SPORTS PROGRAMS
(nET OF SChOlARShIP AllOWAnCES OF $3,004 AnD $2,833)

42,407

34,128

OThER AUXIlIARY EnTERPRISES

43,595

42,519

OThER MEDICAl CEnTER REvEnUE

44,346

43,165

OThER OPERATInG REvEnUE

55,687

43,508

2,750,013

2,590,360

SAlARIES

1,622,349

1,532,664

BEnEFITS

464,461

442,338

SChOlARShIPS AnD FEllOWShIPS

71,087

68,664

UTIlITIES

53,433

58,027

SUPPlIES AnD MATERIAlS

323,700

296,727

PURChASED SERvICES

435,140

384,983

DEPRECIATIOn

200,287

189,821

totAl operAting revenueS

net nonoperAting revenueS

increASe in net ASSetS

104,191

69,210

194,289

169,143

163,345

595,495

net ASSetS

nET ASSETS – BEGInnInG OF YEAR
net ASSetS – end of yeAr

4,973,965

4,378,470

$ 5,137,310

$ 4,973,965

expenSeS
operAting expenSeS (nOTE 13)

OThER
totAl operAting expenSeS
operAting income (loSS)

113,325

97,707

3,283,782

3,070,931

(533,769)

(480,571)

Dollars in thousands
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
June 30,
cASh flowS from operAting ActivitieS

STUDEnT TUITIOn AnD FEES
PATIEnT SERvICES
GRAnTS AnD COnTRACTS
PAYMEnTS TO SUPPlIERS
PAYMEnTS FOR UTIlITIES
PURChASED SERvICES
OThER OPERATInG DISBURSEMEnTS

2008

June 30,
2007

cASh flowS from cApitAl And relAted finAncing ActivitieS
PROCEEDS FROM CAPITAl DEBT

2008

2007

234,282

214,784

70,237

71,963

$ 396,343

$ 377,105

927,573

796,444

CAPITAl APPROPRIATIOnS

1,070,683

977,996

CAPITAl GRAnTS AnD GIFTS RECEIvED

13,393

25,933

(343,495)

(293,280)

PURChASES OF CAPITAl ASSETS

(292,305)

(414,998)

(57,900)

(56,440)

PRInCIPAl PAID On CAPITAl DEBT AnD lEASES

(281,773)

(39,192)

(446,773)

(382,589)

InTEREST PAID On CAPITAl DEBT AnD lEASES

(46,737)

(47,538)

(9,174)

5,403

OThER

(107,769)

(97,676)

(1,617,317)

(1,527,916)

(451,454)

(424,267)

PAYMEnTS FOR SChOlARShIPS AnD FEllOWShIPS

(71,087)

(68,664)

cASh flowS from inveSting ActivitieS

lOAnS ISSUED TO STUDEnTS

(24,860)

(27,990)

PROCEEDS FROM SAlES OF InvESTMEnTS

3,077,404

3,256,662

COllECTIOn OF lOAnS TO STUDEnTS

24,154

26,046

PURChASES OF InvESTMEnTS

(3,056,907)

(3,343,042)

InvESTMEnT InCOME

74,677

104,088

95,174

17,708

PAYMEnTS TO EMPlOYEES
PAYMEnTS FOR BEnEFITS

OThER MEDICAl CEnTER RECEIPTS

44,346

43,165

AUXIlIARY EnTERPRISE RECEIPTS

168,151

138,493

SAlES AnD SERvICES OF EDUCATIOnAl DEPARTMEnTS

108,148

117,768

OThER RECEIPTS
net cASh uSed By operAting ActivitieS

42,612

39,276

(338,645)

(362,529)

net cASh uSed By cApitAl And relAted finAncing ActivitieS

(312,077)

net cASh provided By inveSting ActivitieS

net increASe (decreASe) in cASh And cASh equivAlentS
CASh AnD CASh EqUIvAlEnTS – BEGInnInG OF ThE YEAR
cASh And cASh equivAlentS – end of the yeAr

$

(183,645)

(17,751)

8,405

34,458

26,053

16,707

$

34,458

cASh flowS from noncApitAl finAncing ActivitieS
STATE APPROPRIATIOnS
GIFTS, EXClUDInG PERMAnEnT EnDOWMEnT AnD CAPITAl
ADDITIOnS TO PERMAnEnT EnDOWMEnTS

357,420

45,179

85,885

OPERATInG lOSS

104,191

69,210

ADJUSTMEnTS TO RECOnCIlE OPERATInG lOSS TO nET CASh
USED BY OPERATInG ACTIvITIES:

DIRECT lEnDInG RECEIPTS

162,103

150,585

DIRECT lEnDInG DISBURSEMEnTS

(161,561)

(142,431)

RECEIPTS FROM OUTSIDE AFFIlIATED AGEnCIES

495,651

498,933

DISBURSEMEnTS TO OUTSIDE AFFIlIATED AGEnCIES

(517,164)

(473,881)

12,701

(8,850)

537,797

536,871

OThER
net cASh provided By noncApitAl finAncing ActivitieS

reconciliAtion of operAting loSS to net cASh uSed By operAting ActivitieS

396,697

$ (533,769)

$ (480,571)

200,287

189,821

RECEIvABlES

(12,783)

(55,598)

InvEnTORIES

(2,345)

(143)

DEPRECIATIOn EXPEnSE
ChAnGES In ASSETS AnD lIABIlITIES:

OThER ASSETS
ACCOUnTS PAYABlE AnD ACCRUED lIABIlITIES

46,717

(7,521)

OThER lOnG-TERM lIABIlITIES

(11,443)

(18,902)

1,421

439

lOAnS TO STUDEnTS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(9,610)
21,939

DEFERRED REvEnUE

U.S. GOvERnMEnTAl GRAnTS REFUnDABlE

Dollars in thousands

626
(25,230)

net cASh uSed By operAting ActivitieS

(2,126)

(2,383)

$ (338,645)

$ (362,529)

Notes to Financial Statements
note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
finAnciAl reporting entity

The University of Washington (“University”), an agency of
the state of Washington, is governed by a 10-member Board
of Regents, appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the
state Senate.
The financial statements include the individual schools, colleges, and departments of the University, the University of
Washington Medical Center, Portage Bay Insurance (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the University), and certain affiliated
operations determined to be a part of the University’s financial reporting entity. Affiliated organizations are evaluated for
inclusion in the reporting entity as component units based on
the significance of their relationship with the University.
The University of Washington Alumni Association,
University of Washington Physicians, University of
Washington Physicians Network, Community Development
Properties C-D, Educational Research Properties, Radford
Court Properties, Twenty-Fifth Avenue Properties, TSB
Properties, and Washington Biomedical Research Properties I
and II are included in the reporting entity as blended component units. These legally separate entities are included in the
University’s financial reporting entity because of the nature
of their relationship to the University. Financial information
for these affiliated organizations may be obtained from their
respective administrative offices.
BASiS of Accounting

The financial statements of the University have been
prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
— for State and Local Governments,” as amended by
“GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements —
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Public
Colleges and Universities.” The University is reporting as
a special purpose government engaged in business type
activities (BTA). In accordance with BTA reporting, the
University presents management’s discussion and analysis,
balance sheets, statements of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net assets, statements of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation
has been incurred. All intra-agency transactions have been
eliminated. The University has elected not to apply any FASB
pronouncements after November 30, 1989. The University
reports capital assets net of accumulated depreciation (as applicable), and reports depreciation expense in the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.

uSe of eStimAteS

On July 1, 2006, the University adopted GASB Statement
No. 48, “Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future
Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future
Revenues”, which includes provisions for disclosure of
pledged revenues. Disclosure of the University’s pledged
revenues is included in Note 12.

The pollution remediation liability is estimated by reviewing the current status of known polluted sites. This estimate
is subject to change due to improvements in technology,
inflation, changes in the scope of work and the pursuit of
reimbursement from other responsible parties.

On July 1, 2007, the University adopted GASB Statement
No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”, effective for the year ending June 30, 2008. This pronouncement
requires the recognition and disclosure of the accumulated
obligation for retiree health care and life insurance costs
(Note 15).
On July 1, 2007, the University adopted GASB Statement
No. 49, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution
Remediation Obligations”. This pronouncement includes
provisions for recognition and disclosure of estimated costs
for cleanup of pollution that the University may have an
obligation to remediate. Pursuant to this accounting pronouncement, the University has recorded liabilities totaling
$6 million primarily for the remediation and management
of contamination of several adjoining parcels at the Tacoma
campus. The University has filed a feasibility plan that the
Washington State Department of Ecology is reviewing. The
University has also identified a number of small sites for
which it may have pollution remediation liabilities that are
not significant.
On July 1, 2007, the University adopted GASB Statement
No. 50, “Pension Disclosure — an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 25 and No. 26.” This pronouncement more
closely aligns the financial reporting requirements for pensions with those for other post-employment benefits. The
University had no additional disclosures resulting from this
new pronouncement.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles involves management estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and revenues and expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates; however, in
each case, the University believes that allowances, reserves,
and estimates of expected liabilities are adequate.

Allowances for doubtful accounts (Notes 4 and 5) are estimates based on the historical experience of the University with
respect to the collectability of accounts and loans receivable.
The liability and expense related to the supplemental component of the University of Washington Retirement Plan
(UWRP) (Note 16), is based on an actuarial valuation. The
results of an actuarial valuation are estimates based on historical data and the demographics of the employee population.
The self insurance reserve (Note 17) is estimated through an
actuarial calculation using individual case-basis valuations
and statistical analyses. Considerable variability is inherent in
such estimates.
other Accounting policieS

Investments. Investments, other than real estate and miscellaneous investments, are stated at fair value. Real estate and
miscellaneous investments are stated at cost or, in the case
of gifts, at fair values at the date of donation. The fair value
of all debt and equity securities with a readily determinable
fair value is based on quotations from national securities
exchanges. The alternative investments, which are not readily
marketable, are carried at the estimated fair values provided
by the investment managers. The University reviews and
evaluates the values provided by the investment managers
and agrees with the valuation methods and assumptions used
in determining the fair value of the alternative investments.
Those estimated fair values may differ significantly from
the values that would have been used had a ready market for
these securities existed.
a n n ua l r e p o rt 2 0 0 8
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Investments under long-term strategies are considered noncurrent. Short-term investments consist primarily of cash
equivalents and fixed income vehicles with maturities of less
than one year.
Securities Lending Transactions. Cash collateral received
from borrowers through securities lending transactions is
recorded as an asset with an offsetting liability.
Inventories. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
or market value. Consumable inventories, consisting of
expendable materials and supplies held for consumption,
are generally valued using the weighted average method.
Merchandise inventories are generally valued using the
first-in, first-out method.
Capital Assets. Land, buildings, equipment, and library
books are stated at cost or, if acquired by gift, at fair market
value at the date of the gift. Additions, replacements, major
repairs, and renovations are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, generally 15 to 50 years for building components, 20 to 50 years for infrastructure and land
improvements, 15 years for library books, and five to seven
years for equipment.
Capitalized construction-related interest was $6,256,000
and $2,808,000 during 2008 and 2007, respectively. These
amounts are net of interest earned of $5,105,000 and
$4,493,000, respectively.
Deferred Revenues. Deferred revenues occur when funds
have been collected in advance of an event, such as advance
ticket sales, summer quarter tuition, and unspent cash
advances on certain grants.
Deferred Giving – Split Interest Agreements. Under these
agreements, donors make initial gifts to trusts or directly to
the University. The University has beneficial interests, but is
not necessarily the sole beneficiary. The University records an
asset related to these agreements at fair market value at year
end. The University also records a liability related to the splitinterest agreements equal to the present value of expected
future distributions; the discount rates applied range from
4.6% to 7.5%.
Compensated Absences. University employees accrue
annual leave at rates based on length of service and sick leave
at the rate of one day per month. Annual leave accrued as of
June 30, 2008 and 2007 of $63,680,000 and of $67,219,000,
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respectively, was included in accrued liabilities. Sick leave
accrued as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 was $25,965,000 and
$28,073,000, respectively.

Unrestricted net assets: Net assets not subject to externally
imposed restrictions, but which may be designated for specific purposes by management, or the Board of Regents.

Scholarship Allowances. Tuition and Fees are reported
net of scholarship allowances that are applied to students’
accounts from external funds that have already been recognized as revenue by the University. Student aid paid
directly to students is reported as scholarships and
fellowships expense.

Tax Exemption. The University, as an agency of the state of
Washington, is not subject to federal income tax pursuant to
Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code, except for tax on
unrelated business income.

State Appropriations. The state of Washington appropriates funds to the University on both annual and biennial
bases. These revenues are reported as nonoperating revenues
in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Net Assets. The University of Washington Medical
Center received $8,296,000 and $10,859,000 in operating
state appropriations in 2008 and 2007, respectively. These
amounts are included in other Medical Center revenue in
the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Assets.

note 2:

Operating Activities. The University’s policy for reporting
operating activities in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets is to include activities that generally result from exchange transactions. Examples of exchange
transactions are payments received for tuition, patient
services, or grants under which services are performed, as
well as payments made for the delivery of goods or services.
Certain other significant revenue streams used for operations,
such as state appropriations, gifts and investment income are
recorded as nonoperating revenues, as prescribed by GASB
Statement No. 35.
Net Assets. The University’s net assets are classified as follows:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: The University’s
investments in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation,
net of outstanding debt obligations related to capital assets;
Restricted net assets – nonexpendable: Net assets subject to
externally-imposed requirements that they be maintained
permanently by the University, including permanent endowment funds and annuity and life income funds;
Restricted net assets – expendable: Net assets which the
University is obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external parties, generally scholarships,
research, and department uses;

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand, petty cash, and bank deposits.
Most cash, except for cash held at the University, is covered
by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held
in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered
by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission
(PDPC). At June 30, 2008 and 2007, bank balances of
$1,427,000 and $1,345,000, respectively, were insured by the
FDIC and balances of $31,411,000 and $29,946,000, respectively, were collateralized under the PDPC.

note 3:

Deposit with State of Washington
State law requires the University to deposit certain funds
with the state treasurer, who holds and invests the funds. The
deposits include: amounts held for the University’s permanent
land grant funds, the University of Washington building fee
collected from students, and certain general obligation bonds
reserve funds. The fair value of these funds approximates the
carrying value.

note 4:

Student Loans Receivable
Net student loans of $66,526,000 and $64,400,000 at June
30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, consist of $51,252,000 and
$49,831,000 from federal programs and $15,274,000 and
$14,569,000 from University programs. Interest income
from student loans for the years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007 was $1,148,000 and $942,000, respectively. Loans
are made primarily to students who reside in the state of
Washington. The loans are unsecured.

tABle 1 – univer Sity inve Stment S And coll A terA l
from S ecuritie S lending (Dollars in thousands)

note 5:

Accounts Receivable
The major components of accounts receivable as of June 30,
2008 and 2007 were:

investment type
CASH eqUIVALeNtS

(Dollars in thousands)

PAtIeNt SeRVICeS
GRANtS AND CoNtRACtS
PeNDING INVeStMeNt SALeS

2008

2007

$ 235,863

$ 234,511

138,202

140,147

CASH eqUIVALeNtS-LoANeD

–

475,958

633,653

DoMeStIC FIxeD INCoMe-LoANeD

465,144

289,793

34,117

126,720

561,295

581,928

6,133

18,515
9,800

tUItIoN

26,991

18,887

DoMeStIC eqUItY-LoANeD

7,362

14,593

FoReIGN eqUItY
FoReIGN eqUItY-LoANeD

LeSS: ALLoWANCe FoR
DoUBtFUL ACCoUNtS
totAL

83,408

73,211

510,484

509,664

(88,120)

(80,471)

$ 422,364

$ 429,193

FoReIGN FIxeD INCoMe
DoMeStIC eqUItY

Investments

59,491

74,626

171,330

484,540

24,024

28,802

NoN-MARKetABLe ALteRNAtIVeS

758,043

509,590

MARKetABLe ALteRNAtIVeS

497,332

323,931

ReAL eStAte

8,313

6,039

MISCeLLANeoUS

5,742

5,773

3,301,897

3,299,579

628,279

396,657

$ 3,930,176

$ 3,696,236

totAL INVeStMeNtS

note 6:

$ 234,184

DoMeStIC FIxeD INCoMe

12,525

otHeR

$ 163,725
77,383

SALeS AND SeRVICeS
StAte APPRoPRIAtIoNS

carrying value
June 30,
June 30,
2008
2007

CoLLAteRAL FRoM SeCURItIeS
LeNDING – CASH
totAL INVeStMeNtS AND
CoLLAteRAL

inveStmentS – generAl

The Board of Regents of the University of Washington is
responsible for the management of the University’s investments. The Board establishes investment policy, which is
carried out by the Chief Investment Officer. The University
of Washington Investment Committee (UWINCO), comprising Board members and investment professionals, advises
on matters relating to the management of the University’s
investment portfolios.
The composition of the carrying amounts of investments by
type at June 30, 2008 and 2007 are listed in Table 1.

inveStment poolS

The University combines most short-term cash balances
into the Invested Funds Pool. At June 30, 2008, the
Invested Funds Pool totaled $868,552,000 compared to
$796,069,000 at June 30, 2007. The fund also owns units in
the Consolidated Endowment Fund valued at $445,985,000
on June 30, 2008 and $414,271,000 on June 30, 2007. By
University policy, departments with qualifying funds in the
Invested Funds Pool receive distributions based on their
average balances and on the type of balance. Campus
depositors received 4.25% in both fiscal years 2008 and
2007. Base rate accounts received 1% and gift accounts
received 3% in both fiscal years 2008 and 2007. The
difference between the actual earnings of the Invested Funds
Pool and the calculated distributions is used to support
activities benefiting all University departments.
The majority of the endowed funds are invested in a pooled
fund called the Consolidated Endowment Fund (CEF).
Individual endowments subscribe to or purchase units in

the pool on the basis of a per unit valuation of the CEF at
fair value on the last business day of the calendar quarter.
Income is distributed based on the number of units held.
The CEF annual income distribution is 5% of the average
fair market value of the CEF for the previous three years.
RCW 24.44.050 of the Washington State Code allows for
the spending of appreciation in the CEF.
The University records its permanent endowments at the
lower of original gift value or current market value in the
Restricted Nonexpendable Net Assets category. Of the total
$1,280,085,000 and $1,209,499,000 permanent endowment
funds (at fair value) as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, the aggregate amount of the deficiencies for all endowments where
the fair value of the assets is less than the original gifts is
$3,256,000 and $0 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Funds in irrevocable trusts managed by trustees other than the
University are not reported in the financial statements. The
fair value of these funds was $53,219,000 at June 30, 2008
compared to $58,915,000 at June 30, 2007. Income received
from these trusts was $1,997,000 for the year ended June 30,
2008, and $2,194,000 for the year ended June 30, 2007.
Net appreciation in the fair value of investments includes
both realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007, the University realized net gains of $156,467,000 and
$172,697,000, respectively, from the sale of investments. The
calculation of realized gains and losses is independent of the
net appreciation of the fair value of investments. Realized
gains and losses on investments that have been held in more
than one fiscal year and are sold in the current year, include
the net appreciation of these investments reported in the
prior year(s). The net appreciation in the fair value of investments during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was
$2,702,000 and $399,212,000, respectively.
funding commitmentS

The University enters into contracts with investment managers to fund alternative investments. As of June 30, 2008, the
University had outstanding commitments to fund alternative
investments of $312,223,000.
SecuritieS lending

The University’s investment policies permit it to lend its
securities to broker dealers and other entities. The University’s
custodian lends securities for collateral in the form of cash or
other securities, with the simultaneous agreement to return
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the collateral for the same securities in the future. U.S. securities are loaned and secured by collateral valued at 102% of the
fair value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-U.S.
securities are loaned and secured by collateral valued at 105%
of the fair value of the securities plus any accrued interest.

resulted in net revenues of $3,011,000 for the year ended June
30, 2008, and $629,000 for the year ended June 30, 2007.

The contract with the custodian requires it to indemnify the
University if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and
if the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent)
or fail to pay the University for income distributions by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan.

intereSt rAte riSk

Either the University or the borrower can terminate all securities loans on demand, although the average term of overall
loans is 105 days. Cash collateral is invested in a short-term
investment pool which had an average weighted maturity of
42 days as of June 30, 2008. The relationship between the
maturities of the investment pool and the University’s loans
is affected by the maturities of the securities loaned by other
entities that use the custodian’s pool. The University cannot
determine the maturities of these loaned securities. The
University cannot sell or pledge non-cash collateral unless the
borrower defaults. Non-cash collateral at June 30, 2008 and
2007 was $13,615,000 and $5,692,000, respectively.
Securities on loan at June 30, 2008 and 2007, totaled
$626,042,000 and $393,221,000, respectively, and are listed
by investment type in Table 1. The securities lending program

Due to market conditions, the University terminated this
program in September, 2008.
The University manages interest rate risk through its investment policies and the investment guidelines established with
each manager. Each fixed-income manager is assigned a
maximum boundary for duration as compared to the manager’s relevant benchmark index. The goal is to allow ample
freedom for the manager to perform, while controlling the
interest rate risk in the portfolio. Modified duration, which
estimates the sensitivity of a bond’s price to interest rate
changes, is based on Macaulay duration. Macaulay duration
is the basic calculation developed for a portfolio of bonds
assembled to fund a fixed liability. Macaulay duration is
calculated as follows: sum of discounted time-weighted cash
flows divided by the bond price.
Modified duration is calculated using the following formula:
Macaulay duration divided by (1 + yield-to-maturity divided
by the number of coupon payments per year).
As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, modified duration of the
University’s investments for which duration is measured is
as follows:

tABle 2 – inveStmentS mAnAged By the univerSity (Dollars in thousands; modified duration in years)
duration as of June 30, 2008
consolidated
endowment fund
Asset category

Asset value

duration as of June 30, 2007
consolidated
endowment fund

invested funds

duration

Asset value

duration

Asset value

invested funds

duration

Asset value

duration

domeStic fixed income
ASSet BACKeD SeCURItIeS

4,151

2.74

$ 39,457

1.40

CASH eqUIVALeNtS

20,996

0.04

135,280

0.01

CoRPoRAte BoNDS

17,585

8.28

7,288

GoVeRNMeNt & AGeNCIeS

53,175

4.39

468,864

MoRtGAGe ReLAteD
SUBtotAL

$

$

4,280

1.95

$ 55,968

0.86

40,702

–

54,035

0.04

1.95

9,534

5.25

8,943

1.64

3.11

43,362

6.78

192,095

3.32

37,087

4.71

216,936

2.95

29,867

3.70

240,465

2.81

132,994

4.26

867,825

2.50

127,745

3.62

551,506

2.50

foreign fixed income
INteRNAtIoNAL
INteRNAtIoNAL FIxeD
SUBtotAL
totAl
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82

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

29,522

4.05

727

3.03

27,256

4.67

705

3.06

29,604

4.04

727

3.03

27,256

4.67

705

3.06

$ 162,598

4.22

$ 868,552

2.50

$ 155,001

3.81

$ 552,211

2.50

At June 30, 2008 and 2007, $181,391,000 and $478,379,000,
respectively, of additional domestic fixed-income securities (including loaned) and $3,786,000 and $98,759,000,
respectively, of additional foreign fixed-income securities,
which in total make up 5.6% and 17.5%, respectively, of the
University’s investments, are not included in the duration
figures above. These investments, which are managed by the
University or by the University’s affiliates, are not invested
under the same investment strategy or with the same custodian as those detailed in Table 2.
credit riSk

The University Investment Policies limit fixed-income exposure to investment-grade assets. The Investment Policy for the
operating fund’s cash pool requires each manager to maintain
an average AA rating as issued by a nationally recognized
rating organization. The operating fund’s liquidity pool
requires each manager to maintain an average quality rating
of “A” and to hold 50% of their portfolios in government
and government agency issues. The Investment Policy for the
CEF reflects its long-term nature by specifying average quality rating levels by individual manager, but still restricting
investment to investment-grade credits.
foreign currency riSk

The University’s Investment Policies permit investments in
international equity and other asset classes which can include
foreign currency exposure.
The University’s investment strategy within the Invested
Funds Pool is to hedge exposure to foreign currency. Within
this pool, the University enters into foreign currency forward
contracts, futures contracts, and options to hedge the foreign
currency exposure.
At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the University had net outstanding forward commitments to sell foreign currency with a total
fair value of $19,056,000 and $9,335,000, respectively, which
equals 0.58% and 0.30% of the total portfolio.
Table 3 details the market value of foreign denominated securities by currency type in the Consolidated Endowment Fund
at June 30, 2008 and 2007.

tABle 3 – inveStmentS in foreign currency
foreign currency (Dollars in thousands)

eURo

note 7:

June 30, 2008
market value
percentage

$ 149,730

30%

JAPAN – YeN

58,160

12%

BRItISH – PoUND

49,498

10%

CHINA – ReNMINBI

32,173

6%

CANADIAN – DoLLAR

30,936

6%

RUSSIA – RoUBLe

25,986

5%

INDIAN – RUPee

22,274

5%

BRAZIL – ReAL

19,799

4%

NeW tAIWANeSe – DoLLAR

14,849

3%

otHeR (LeSS tHAN 3% eACH)

96,520

19%

$ 499,925

100%

totAl

June 30, 2007

eURo

$ 280,762

29%

135,921

14%

BRItISH – PoUND

77,162

8%

CHINA – ReNMINBI

73,377

8%

CANADIAN – DoLLAR

47,221

5%

KoReAN – WoN

42,311

4%

NeW tAIWANeSe – DoLLAR

31,165

3%

HoNG KoNG – DoLLAR

27,818

3%

INDIAN – RUPee

26,677

3%

227,170

23%

$ 969,584

100%

JAPAN – YeN

otHeR (LeSS tHAN 3% eACH)
totAl

Metropolitan Tract
The Metropolitan Tract, located in downtown Seattle, comprises approximately 11 acres of developed property, including office space, retail space, parking, and a luxury hotel.
This land was the original site of the University from 1861
until 1895, when the University moved to its present Seattle
location. Since the early 1900s, the Metropolitan Tract
has been leased by the University to entities responsible for
developing and operating the property.
On July 18, 1953, the Board of Regents of the University
and the entity now known as Unico Properties, Inc. entered
into a lease agreement for office, retail, and parking facilities,
which will expire in 2014. On January 19, 1980, the Board
of Regents of the University entered into a lease with the
Urban/Four Seasons Hotel Venture for the Olympic Hotel
property, which will expire in 2040. The hotel was operated
as the Four Seasons Olympic Hotel until July 31, 2003. On
August 1, 2003, the remaining lease term was assigned to
LHCS Hotel Holding (2002) LLC. The hotel was renamed

the Fairmont Olympic Hotel and is now managed by
Fairmont Hotels & Resorts.
The balances as of June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, represent operating assets, net of liabilities, and land, buildings,
and improvements stated at appraised value as of November
1, 1954. The balances also include subsequent additions
and improvements at cost, less retirements and accumulated
depreciation of $109,406,000 and $101,667,000, respectively, net of the outstanding balance of the line of credit
described below.
In July 2004, the University obtained a 10-year term, variable rate revolving credit line for the Metropolitan Tract of
up to $25,000,000 for capital repairs and improvements. The
credit line is secured by future revenues of the Metropolitan
Tract. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, $8,500,000 and
$2,500,000, respectively, was outstanding on the credit line.
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note 8:

Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the two-year period ended June 30, 2008 is summarized as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

LAND*

Balance at
June 30, 2006

$

INFRAStRUCtURe

Additions/
transfers

62,332

$

Balance at
June 30, 2007

retirements

43,948

$

–

$

Additions/
transfers

106,280

$

Balance at
June 30, 2008

retirements

–

$

–

$

106,280

173,162

325

–

173,487

–

–

173,487

2,835,840

163,572

–

2,999,412

250,220

1,468

3,248,164

FURNItURe, FIxtUReS, AND eqUIPMeNt

879,951

110,840

58,204

932,587

94,458

44,680

982,365

LIBRARY MAteRIALS

232,402

16,141

1,241

247,302

14,845

1,320

260,827

5,513

–

–

5,513

6

2

5,517

100,166

95,386

–

195,552

–

145,448

4,289,366

430,212

59,445

4,660,133

47,470

4,922,088

61,898

4,009

–

65,907

3,887

–

69,794

1,002,398

94,332

–

1,096,730

98,738

1,418

1,194,050
773,962

BUILDINGS

CAPItALIZeD CoLLeCtIoNS
CoNStRUCtIoN IN PRoGReSS*
totAL

(50,104)
309,425

LeSS ACCUMULAteD DePReCIAtIoN
INFRAStRUCtURe
BUILDINGS
FURNItURe, FIxtUReS, AND eqUIPMeNt

702,436

80,260

53,273

729,423

85,916

41,377

LIBRARY MAteRIALS

148,571

11,220

813

158,978

11,746

871

169,853

1,915,303

189,821

54,086

2,051,038

200,287

43,666

2,207,659

$ 2,374,063

$ 240,391

5,359

$ 2,609,095

$ 109,138

3,804

$ 2,714,429

totAL ACCUMULAteD DePReCIAtIoN
cApitAl ASSetS, net

$

$

*Non-depreciable

note 9:

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term liability activity for the two-year period ended June 30, 2008 is summarized as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at
June 30, 2006

Additions

reductions

Balance at
June 30, 2007

Additions

reductions

Balance at
June 30, 2008

current
portion 2007

current
portion 2008

LeASeS AND BoNDS PAYABLe:
CAPItAL LeASe oBLIGAtIoNS (Note 10)

$

31,607

$

13,690

$

10,103

24,482

$ 10,696

254,404

13,820

541,620

229,380

118,200

652,800

26,660

16,195

845,038

229,380

142,732

931,686

51,176

41,640

172,000

4,902

139,041

37,861

3,588

5,822

1,707

468

2

2,173

2

1,317

6,088

44,868

1,360

8,148

38,080

5,666

7,118

–

–

–

6,000

–

6,000

–

–

24,841

4,189

957

28,073

–

2,108

25,965

942

1,533

34,028

13,148

7,043

40,133

13,286

5,904

47,515

5,804

6,474

7,609

7,743

837

14,515

7,743

781

21,477

875

809

148,918

171,329

18,951

301,296

33,759

155,984

179,071

16,877

23,073

$ 952,374

$ 249,454

$ 55,494

$ 1,146,334

$ 263,139

$ 298,716

$ 1,110,757

$ 68,053

4,480

ReVeNUe BoNDS PAYABLe (nOTE 11)

490,495

59,955

8,830

803,456

78,125

36,543

37,990

136,659

2,649

2,518

566

1,377

41,932

9,024

–

SICK LeAVe
SeLF-INSURANCe (nOTE 17)

totAL LeASeS AND BoNDS PAYABLe

17,610

35,194

–

13,820

281,354

$

$

–

GeNeRAL oBLIGAtIoN BoNDS PAYABLe (nOTE 11)

268,224

$

10,712

$

$

11,027
14,418

otHeR LIABILItIeS:
NoteS PAYABLe & otHeR – CAPItAL ASSet ReLAteD
NoteS PAYABLe & otHeR – NoN-CAPItAL ASSet ReLAteD
CHARItABLe AND DeFeRReD GIFt ANNUItY LIABILItY
PoLLUtIoN ReMeDIAtIoN LIABILItY

Net PeNSIoN oBLIGAtIoN (nOTE 16)
totAL otHeR LIABILItIeS
totAl long-term liABilitieS
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$

64,713

note 10:

Leases
cApitAl leASeS

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases, and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments, as of
June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Buildings and Equipment under Capital Lease were as follows:

year

(Dollars in thousands) principal

2009

$ 11,762

2010

6,803

2011

4,240

2012

1,740

2013

1,085

2014 - 2018

266
25,896

totAl minimum leASe pAymentS

LeSS: AMoUNt RePReSeNtING INteReSt CoStS
preSent vAlue of minimum pAymentS

(1,414)
$ 24,482

Balance at
June 30, 2006

Additions

$ 51,183

$ 13,690

$ 1,406

$ 63,467

9,987

–

–

9,987

–

–

9,987

61,170

13,690

1,406

73,454

–

–

73,454

eqUIPMeNt

32,740

12,693

1,125

44,308

12,863

–

57,171

ReAL eStAte

5,992

999

–

6,991

999

–

7,990

38,732

13,692

1,125

51,299

13,862

–

65,161

281

$ 22,155

($13,862)

–

$ 8,293

(Dollars in thousands)

eqUIPMeNt
ReAL eStAte
totAL

retirements

Balance at
June 30, 2007

Additions

$

retirements

–

$

Balance at
June 30, 2008

–

$ 63,467

LeSS ACCUMULAteD
DePReCIAtIoN

totAL ACCUMULAteD
DePReCIAtIoN
LeASeD CAPItAL ASSetS, Net

$ 22,438

($

2)

$

$

operAting leASeS

The University has certain lease agreements in effect that
are considered operating leases, primarily for leased building space. During the years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007, the University recorded expenses of $35,399,000 and
$35,471,000, respectively, for these leases. Future lease payments under these leases as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

note 11:

Bonds and Notes Payable
The bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2008, consist of State of Washington General Obligation and Refunding Bonds,
University Revenue Bonds, and Notes Payable. These obligations have fixed interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 7.38%. Future
debt service requirements at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

year

(Dollars in thousands)

2009

$ 27,017

2010

21,691

2011

18,865

year

2012

16,985

2009

2013

13,248

2010

11,719

12,093

17,335

31,577

2,873

1,504

2014-2018

36,265

2011

12,528

11,469

18,500

30,719

3,493

1,376

2019-2023

17,104

2012

13,535

10,788

19,440

29,866

2,911

1,247

2024-2028

4,824

2013

14,515

10,041

20,720

28,952

2,979

1,110

2029-2051

28

2014 - 2018

83,255

37,969

107,770

129,084

9,918

4,042

$156,027

2019 - 2023

63,595

18,538

127,425

103,810

9,481

1,460

2024 - 2028

39,044

4,225

81,375

79,089

1,240

159

2029 - 2033

1,795

58

68,205

54,754

175,835

32,847

$ 254,404

$ 117,954

$ 652,800

$ 553,314

40,034

$ 12,524

totAl minimum leASe pAymentS

BondS And noteS pAyABle (Dollars in thousands)

principal

$

14,418

interest

$

12,773

2034 - 2038
totAl

univerSity of wAShington
revenue BondS

StAte of wAShington
generAl oBligAtion BondS

principal

$

16,195

interest

$

32,616

noteS pAyABle
And other

principal

$

$

7,139

interest

$

1,626
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State law requires that the University reimburse the state for
debt service payments relating to its portion of the state of
Washington General Obligation and Refunding Bonds from
Medical Center patient revenues, tuition, timber sales, and
other revenues. The University has pledged the net revenues
from the Housing and Dining System, the Parking System,
and a special student fee to retire the related revenue bonds.
refunding Activity

On May 6, 2008, the University of Washington refunded
Revenue Bonds totaling $91,540,000 with new bond issuances totaling $90,975,000. The refunded bonds had average interest rates ranging from 3.768% to 5.036%; the new
bonds have average interest rates of 4.523%. The refunding
decreased the total debt service payments to be made over
the next 29.5 years by $1,138,689 and resulted in a total
economic gain of $471,063.

note 12:

Pledged Revenues
The University has pledged specific revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay the principal and interest of revenue
bonds. The following is a schedule of the pledged revenues and related debt:
(Dollars in thousands)

Source of revenue pledged

total future
revenues
pledged*

proportion of debt
Service to pledged
revenues (current year)

description of debt

purpose of debt

Housing and Dining Bonds,
issued in 2002 and 2004

Contruction and
renovation of student
housing

2032

18.4%

Housing and Dining
Revenues, net of operating
expenses

$48,940

Student Housing gross
rent from Component Unit
entities, net of permitted
operating expenses

$162,168

Student Housing Revenue
Bonds (Component Unit
entities), issued in 1996, 2000,
and 2002

Construction and
renovation of student
housing

2033

79.7%

Student Facilities Fees and
earnings on invested fees

$75,258

Student Facilities Revenue
Bonds, issued in 2000 and
Student Facilities Refunding
Revenue Bonds issued in 2005

Construction of student
recreational sports
facilities

2030

22.0%

Parking Revenues from the
University Parking System,
net of operating expenses
— reported as Auxiliary
Revenues.

$29,446

University of Washington
Parking System and Refunding
Bonds, issued in 2004

Construction of
improvements and
additions to the
University’s parking system

2030

15.2%

intereSt rAte SwAp Agreement

In October 2004, the University issued General Revenue
Bonds in the amount of $60,720,000 to fund construction of
two research buildings. In connection with this issuance of
the Series 2004A and the Series 2004B variable-rate bonds,
the University entered into an interest rate swap agreement
with a notional amount of $60,720,000. The intention of the
swap was to effectively change the variable rate debt to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.27% as of the closing date of the bonds.

note 13:

note 14:

Beginning in December of 2007, the notional amount of
the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt
declined over time.

Operating Expenses by Function

Related Parties

Operating expenses by functional classification for the years
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

Harborview Medical Center (HMC), a hospital and Level I
adult and pediatric trauma center in Seattle, is a component
unit of King County, Washington. It has been managed by
the University under a management contract between King
County and the University since 1967. The current management contract will be in force through June 30, 2010, but it
can be extended until June 30, 2015, if neither party gives
notice of intent not to renew it.

The estimated fair value of the interest rate swap was an asset
of $3,211,000 as of June 30, 2007.
In May 2008, the underlying bonds were refinanced, and the
University paid $1,628,000 to terminate the swap.

* Total future principal and interest payments on the debt

(Dollars in thousands)
operating expenses

INStRUCtIoN
ReSeARCH

commerciAl pAper progrAm

PUBLIC SeRVICe

In July 2006, the Board of Regents authorized a commercial paper program with a borrowing limit of $250 million,
payable from University General Revenues. This short term
borrowing program is primarily used to fund capital expenditures. As of June 30, 2008, there was $3 million in outstanding commercial paper.

ACADeMIC SUPPoRt

u n i v e r s i t y o f W a s h i n g to n

2008

2007

eDUCAtIoNAL AND GeNeRAL

StUDeNt SeRVICeS

$

823,734
622,913

$

783,272
595,622

31,555

34,838

265,183

219,646

33,771

31,048

INStItUtIoNAL SUPPoRt

155,877

140,431

oPeRAtIoN AND
MAINteNANCe oF PLANt

168,736

175,271

SCHoLARSHIPS AND FeLLoWSHIPS

71,087

68,664

AUxILIARY eNteRPRISeS

161,807

142,883

MeDICAL ReLAteD

748,832

689,435

DePReCIAtIoN

200,287

189,821

$ 3,283,782

$ 3,070,931

totAl operAting expenSeS
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term of
commitment

Under the contract, the HMC Board of Trustees determines
major institutional policies and retains control of programs
and fiscal matters, while King County retains ultimate control over capital programs and capital budgets. The University
is responsible for the operations of HMC, including the
provision of medical, dental, and management services. All of
the individuals employed at HMC, including physicians, are
employees of the University of Washington. HMC expenses,
including payroll, are reimbursed to the University from
HMC fund sources.

HMC revenues and expenses are not recognized in the
University’s financial statements. The University’s financial
statements do, however, include accounts receivable from
HMC of $20,522,000 in 2008 and $22,082,000 in 2007,
as well as HMC investments of $2,717,000 and $2,744,000,
respectively, and accrued liabilities to HMC of $15,369,000
and $14,748,000, respectively.
The University of Washington Foundation (UWF) is a nonprofit organization that performs fundraising activities on

behalf of the University of Washington. The UWF is not
included in the University’s financial statements as a component unit because gifts and grants that are made to the UWF
are immediately transferred to the University. In 2008 and
2007, the UWF transferred $61,758,000 and $46,921,000,
respectively, to the University in gifts and grants received on
its behalf; these are included in the financial statements of the
University. The remaining amounts retained by the UWF are
not significant to the University’s financial statements.

note 16:

Pension Plans
The University offers two contributory plans: the
Washington State Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) plan, a defined benefit retirement plan; and the
University of Washington Retirement Plan (UWRP), a
defined contribution plan with supplemental payments to
beneficiaries, when required.
puBlic employeeS retirement SyStem

note 15:

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
Health care and life insurance programs for employees of
the state of Washington are administered by the Washington
State Health Care Authority (HCA). The HCA calculates
the premium amounts each year that are sufficient to fund
the statewide health and life insurance programs on a payas-you-go basis. These costs are passed through to individual
state agencies based upon active employee headcount; the
agencies pay the premiums for active employees to the HCA.
The agencies may also charge employees for certain higher
cost options elected by the employee.

ActuAriAl Study

State of Washington retirees may elect coverage through
state health and life insurance plans, for which they pay less
than the full cost of the benefits, based on their age and other
demographic factors.

The Actuary’s allocation of the cumulative statewide
liability related to the University, including its unconsolidated affiliates, was approximately $600 million at June
30, 2007. This amount is not included in the University’s
financial statements.

The health care premiums for active employees, which are
paid by the agency during employees’ working careers, subsidize the “underpayments” of retirees. An additional factor
in determining the OPEB obligation is a payment that is
required by the state Legislature to reduce the premiums for
retires covered by Medicare (an “explicit” subsidy). For 2008
this amount was $164 per retiree eligible for parts A and B
of Medicare. This is also passed through to state agencies via
active employee rates charged to the agency.
There is no formal state or University plan that underlies the
subsidy of retiree health and life insurance.

An actuarial study performed by the Washington Office of
the State Actuary calculated that the total OPEB obligation of
the state of Washington at July 1, 2007 was $3.8 billion and
that the 2008 annual cost was $314 million. The Actuary
calculated the OPEB obligation based on individual state
employee data, including age, retirement eligibility, and
length of service. The probability of an employee of a given
age and length of service retiring and receiving OPEB benefits is based on statewide historical data.

The University paid $227 million for health care expenses in
2008, which included its pay-as-you-go portion of the OPEB
liability, calculated by the Actuary at $6.2 million.
The state Actuary’s report is available at:
osa.leg.wa.gov/Actuarial_Services/OPEB/PDF_Docs/2007_
OPEB_Report.pdf

Plan Description: The University of Washington contributes to PERS, a cost sharing, multiple-employer, defined
benefit pension plan administered by the state of Washington
Department of Retirement Systems. PERS Plan 1 provides
retirement and disability benefits and minimum benefit
increases beginning at age 66 to eligible non-academic plan
members hired prior to October 1, 1977. PERS Plans 2 and 3
provide retirement and disability benefits and a cost-of-living
allowance to eligible non-academic plan members hired on or
after October 1, 1977. In addition, PERS Plan 3 has a defined
contribution component, which is fully funded by employee
contributions. The authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions resides with the legislature. The Washington State
Public Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for PERS. The report
may be obtained by writing to the Department of Retirement
Systems, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, Washington 985048380, or visiting www.drs.wa.gov/administration.
Funding Policy: The Office of the State Actuary, using
funding methods prescribed by statute, determines actuarially required contribution rates for PERS. Plan 1 members
are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary.
Contributions for Plan 2 members are determined by the
aggregate method, and may vary over time. The contribution rate for Plan 2 employees at June 30, 2008 and 2007 was
4.15% and 3.5%, respectively. Plan 3 members can choose
contributions ranging from 5% to 15% of salary, based on the
age of the member. The defined contribution benefit for Plan
3 will depend on the member’s contributions, the investment
earnings on those contributions, and if an annuity is taken,
the age at which the member receives payment. The contribution rate for the University at June 30, 2008 and 2007, for
each of PERS Plans 1, 2, and 3 was 6.13% and 5.46%, for
the respective years.

a n n ua l r e p o rt 2 0 0 8

35

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
The University’s contributions to PERS for the years
ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $45,351,000,
$30,996,000, and $16,006,000, respectively, which were
equal to the annual required contributions for each year.
univerSity of wAShington retirement plAn

Plan Description: Faculty, librarians, professional staff,
and certain other salaried employees are eligible to participate in the University of Washington Retirement Plan, a
defined contribution plan administered by the University.
Contributions to the Plan are invested in annuity contracts
or mutual fund accounts offered by one or more fund sponsors. Employees have at all times a 100% vested interest in
their accumulations.
Benefits from fund sponsors are available upon separation or
retirement at the member’s option. RCW 28B.10.400 et. seq.
assigns the authority to the University of Washington Board
of Regents to establish and amend benefit provisions.
The Plan has a supplemental payment component which
guarantees a minimum retirement benefit based upon a

one-time calculation at each employee’s retirement date. The
University makes direct payments to qualifying retirees when
the retirement benefits provided by the fund sponsors do not
meet the benefit goals.
Funding Policy: Employee contribution rates, based on age,
are 5%, 7.5%, or 10% of salary. The University matches the
contributions of employees. Within parameters established by
the Legislature, contribution requirements may be established or amended by the University of Washington Board
of Regents. Employee and employer contributions for the
year ended June 30, 2008 were each $69,015,000 compared
to $63,362,000 each for the year ended June 30, 2007. The
supplemental component of the UWRP is financed on a payas-you-go basis.
Supplemental Component: The University received an
actuarial evaluation of the supplemental component of the
UWRP with a valuation date of July 1, 2007. The previous
evaluation was performed in 2004. The unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAL) calculated as of June 30, 2007
and 2004 was $64,215,000 and $32,454,000, respectively,

and is amortized over a period ending January 1, 2024. The
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of $7,743,000 consists of amortization of the UAL, including interest expense
($4,374,000) and normal cost (current cost) ($3,369,000).
The UAL and ARC were established using the entry age
normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included an
investment rate of return of 5% and projected salary increases
of 4%. Approximately $771,000,000 and $640,000,000 of
the UW’s payroll was covered under this plan during 2007
and 2004, respectively. The following table reflects the activity in the Net Pension Obligation for the years ended June 30,
2008, 2007, and 2006:
(Dollars in thousands)

BALANCe At BeGINNING
oF FISCAL YeAR
ANNUAL ReqUIReD CoNtRIBUtIoN

2008

2007

2006

$ 14,515

$ 7,609

$ 5,159

7,743

7,743

3,363

PAYMeNtS to BeNeFICIARIeS
BAlAnce At end of fiScAl yeAr

(781)

(837)

$ 21,477

$ 14,515

(913)
$ 7,609

note 17:

Commitments and Contingencies
Authorized expenditures for construction projects unexpended as of June 30, 2008, were $76,594,000. These
expenditures will be funded from local funds and
state appropriations.
The University receives and expends substantial amounts
under federal and state grants and contracts. This funding
is used for research, student aid, Medical Center operations,
and other programs, and is subject to audit by governmental
granting agencies. Certain grant and contract costs billed
to the federal government are subject to audit under OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. The University is also involved in
various other claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary
course of business. University management believes that any
liabilities arising from these matters will not have a material
effect on the University’s financial statements.
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The University is exposed to risk of loss related to tort liability, injuries to employees, and loss of property. The University
purchases insurance protection for workers’ compensation
as well as marine, aviation, and certain other risks. The
University also purchases insurance protection for loss of
property at self-sustaining units, bond-financed buildings,
and where otherwise required by contract; otherwise, the
risk of property loss is retained, unfunded. For professional,
general, employment, and automobile liability, the University
maintains a program of self-insurance reserves and excess
insurance coverage. The self-insurance reserve represents
the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims resulting from
events that have occurred on or before the balance sheet
date. The reserve includes the amount that will be required
for future payments of claims that have been reported and
claims related to events that have occurred, but have not

been reported. The reserve is discounted at 4.25% in the year
ended June 30, 2008.
The self-insurance reserve is estimated through an actuarial
calculation. Changes in the self-insurance reserve for the
years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2008

2007

2006

ReSeRVe At BeGINNING
oF FISCAL YeAR

$ 40,133

$ 34,028

INCURReD CLAIMS AND
CHANGeS IN eStIMAteS

13,286

13,148

9,379

CLAIM PAYMeNtS

(5,904)

(7,043)

(4,564)

reServe At end
of fiScAl yeAr

$ 47,515

$ 40,133

$ 29,213

$ 34,028
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